Concordance of Nyāyabhāṣya Manuscripts

Abbreviations

ABC	number according to Janert 1965
В	number according to Biswas 1998
BORI	Bhandarkar Oriental Research Institute, Pune, and its library
BUUB	call number, Bonn University Library (Universitätsbibliothek Bonn), Library of the Institute of Oriental
	and Asian Studies
EIP	Encyclopedia of Indian Philosophies, Volume 1, Section 1, 1995; for the actual Internet version, cf.
	http://faculty.washington.edu/kpotter/ (20.4.2009)
F	Microfilm collection, South Asian, Tibetan and Buddhist Studies Library, University of Vienna
Ha/Ind/Ti	b call number, South Asian, Tibetan and Buddhist Studies Library, University of Vienna
IOL	India Office Library
MRY	copy in the private library of Yasutaka Muroya, Leipzig
MUDS	NCC Office, University of Madras, Dept. of Sanskrit, Chennai
NCC	New Catalogus Catalogorum, Vol. 10, Madras 1978 (Kunjunni Raja 1978)
PL	Project Library
PRZ	copy in the private library of Karin Preisendanz, Vienna
SB	call number, State Library Berlin (Staatsbibliothek Preußischer Kulturbesitz, Berlin)
TUUB	call number, Tübingen University Library (Universitätsbibliothek Tübingen)

Table of Contents

Allahabad (Uttar Pradesh)	2
Alwar (Rajasthan)	
Ashte, Sangli District (Maharashtra)	5
Baroda (Gujarat)	5
Berlin	
Bhavnagar (Gujarat)	6
Bikaner (Rajasthan)	
Bombay/Mumbai	
Calcutta/Kolkata	
Darbhanga (Bihar)	10
Jaisalmer (Rajasthan)	
Jammu	
Kanchipuram	12
Kashmir	13
Kathmandu	
Koba (Gujarat)	15
Kumaon (Uttarakhand)	15
Kurukshetra (Haryana)	16
Lahore	
London	
Madras/Chennai	17
Mirzapur/Mirzapore (Uttar Pradesh)	18

Mithila	
Mysore	18
Nadia District, West Bengal Patan (Gujarat)	19
Patan (Gujarat)	20
Poona/Pune	20
Puri	23
Srinagar	23
Tanjore/Thanjavur	23
Trivandrum/Thiruvananthapuram	24
Ujjain	24
Varanasi	25
Visakhapatnam	29
Vrindaban	29
Wai	30
Walgaon (Amravati District, Maharashtra)	30
Unlocated libraries	

Allahabad (Uttar Pradesh)

Shri Ganganath Jha Campus of the Rashtriya Sanskrit Sansthan (Deemed University), ms. 846/65

Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Ganganatha Jha Research Institute, Allahabad, by Umesh Mishra, Vol. 1.2, 1967, Ser. No. 3014, Acc. No. 846/65 (p. 550) [B 0027] [PRZ; MRY]

Details: palm leaf, Maithili, 18 fol., adhyāya 5

Remarks: This ms. may be identical with a palm leaf ms. of *adhyāya* 5, owned by Pandit Manishvar Jha of Lalganj, District Darbhanga (see V4_E, Preface, p. 1) (cf. Allahabad, SGJC 847/66). Not on shelf in 2004-5.

Shri Ganganath Jha Campus of the Rashtriya Sanskrit Sansthan (Deemed University), ms. 847/66

Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Ganganatha Jha Research Institute, Allahabad, by Umesh Mishra, Vol. 1.2, 1967, Ser. No. 3015, Acc. No. 847/66 (p. 550) [B 0027] [PRZ; MRY]

Siglum: A2^M

Details: palm leaf, Maithili, 20 fol., *adhyāya* 5, very old, L.S. 479 (= 1597/1598 CE) Remarks: (1) This ms. includes the Bhāṣya on *adhyāya* 5 (20 fol.) and also leaves of a Vārttika ms. (2) It is probably identical with a palm leaf ms. of *adhyāya* 5, dated L.S. 479 (= 1597/1598 CE), owned by Pandit Manishvar Jha of Lalganj, District Darbhanga (cf. V4_E, Preface, p. 1).

Shri Ganganath Jha Campus of the Rashtriya Sanskrit Sansthan (Deemed University), ms. 3022/119

Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Ganganatha Jha Research Institute, Allahabad, by Umesh Mishra, Vol. 1.2, 1967, Ser. No. 3016, Acc. No. 3022/119 (p. 550) [B 0027] [PRZ; MRY]

Last update: 06.11.2013

Siglum: A3^M

Details: palm leaf, Maithili, 11 fol., Trisūtrībhāṣya, L.S. 434 (= 1552/1553 CE)

Shri Ganganath Jha Campus of the Rashtriya Sanskrit Sansthan (Deemed University), ms. 7743/247

Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Ganganatha Jha Kendriya Vidyapeetha, Allahabad, by Umesh Mishra, Vol. 2,2, 1973, Ser. No. 7960, Acc. No. 7743/247 (p. 658f.) [B 0027] [PRZ; MRY]

Siglum: A4^M

Details: paper, Maithili, 17 fol., incompl. (1.1.1 up to the middle of 1.2.2)

Shri Ganganath Jha Campus of the Rashtriya Sanskrit Sansthan (Deemed University), ms. 13884 Register of the Sanskrit Sansthan, Allahabad, Acc. No. 13884

Siglum: A5^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 20 fol., adhyāya 1

Remarks: The previous owner was Nandakishor Dvivedi. The ms. was accessed on

23.3.1980.

Shri Ganganath Jha Campus of the Rashtriya Sanskrit Sansthan (Deemed University), ms. 22189

Register of the Sanskrit Sansthan, Allahabad, Acc. No. 22189

Siglum: A6^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 9 fol., Trisūtrībhāsya

Remarks: The scribe, Laksmana, son of Kāśīnātha Caturdhara, wrote this ms. in

Kashi in Saka 1737.

Shri Ganganath Jha Campus of the Rashtriya Sanskrit Sansthan (Deemed University), ms. 23490

Register of the Sanskrit Sansthan, Allahabad, Acc. No. 23490

Siglum: A7^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 102 fol., compl., Śaka 1722 (= 1800/1801 CE)

Shri Ganganath Jha Campus of the Rashtriya Sanskrit Sansthan (Deemed University), ms. 33993

Register of the Sanskrit Sansthan, Allahabad, Acc. No. 33993

Siglum: A8^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, compl., 156 fol.

Remarks: The previous owner was Ram Dulare Tripathi (Varanasi). The ms. was

Last update: 06.11.2013

accessed on 25.2.1983.

Shri Ganganath Jha Campus of the Rashtriya Sanskrit Sansthan (Deemed University), ms. 36181

Register of the Sanskrit Sansthan, Allahabad, Acc. No. 36181

Details: paper, Devanagari, 71 fol., samvat 1813

Remarks: The previous owner was Bhati Shailakumari Mishra, ke. 29-18, Ghasi Tola, in front of Ganesh Temple, Varanasi. The leaves are stuck to each other and cannot be separated.

Shri Ganganath Jha Campus of the Rashtriya Sanskrit Sansthan (Deemed University), ms. 37334

Register of the Sanskrit Sansthan, Allahabad, Acc. No. 37334

Details: paper, Devanagari, incompl., fol. 2-71.

Remarks: The previous owner was Lakshmi Narayana Mishra, ke. 29/18, Ganesh Dikshit Lane, Varanasi. The manuscript was accessed on 9.7.1984.

Collection of Ganganath Jha, ms. 21

A Hand-List of the Manuscripts of Ganganath Jha, Allahabad — in Two Sections, A (Palm-leaf) and B (Paper manuscripts), No. 21 [B 0033]

= NCC, p. 279a, "Jha 21 (ch. 5)"

Details: *adhyāya* 5

Remarks: This may be identical with either Allahabad, SGJC 846/65, or A2^M.

Source of information: NCC

Collection of Ganganath Jha, ms. 46

A Hand-List of the Manuscripts of Ganganath Jha, Allahabad — in Two Sections, A (Palm-leaf) and B (Paper manuscripts), No. 46 [B 0033]

= NCC, p. 279a, "Jha 46"

Details: no further information available

Source of information: NCC

Alwar (Rajasthan)

Last update: 06.11.2013

Rajasthan Oriental Research Institute (Alwar), ms. 1525

Catalogue of Sanskrit and Prakrit Manuscripts (Alwar-Collection) in the Rajasthan Oriental Research Institute, Jodhpur, by O.L. Menaria, V.M. Sharma and M. Vinayasagar, Part 21, Jodhpur 1985, Ser. No. 2611, Ms. No. 1525 (pp. 292-293) [B 0640] [Ha 16: 3826] = Catalogue of the Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Library of H.H. the Maharaja of Ulwar [Alwar], by Peter Peterson, Bombay 1892, No. 612 (p. 26) [ABC 323; B 0041] [SB: OLS Bb SA 200] = NCC, p. 278b, "Alwar 612"

Siglum: Aw^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 156 fol., compl., saṃvat 1911 (= 1854/1855 CE), according to post-colophon saṃvat 1811 (recte: 1911 ?), scribe: Chājūrāmaśarman /

Jīvanrāmaśarman

Ashte, Sangli District (Maharashtra)

A Classified Alphabetical Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Southern Division of the Bombay Presidency, compiled by F. Kielhorn, Fasc. I, Bombay 1869, p. 62, No. 12 [ABC 39; B 0141]

= NCC, p. 279a, "Khn. 62"

= CC, p. 311b, "Khn. 62"

Details: 75 fol.

Remarks: The author is given as Vatsyeśvara. This manuscript is most probably the exemplar of P1^D.

Baroda (Gujarat)

Oriental Institute, The Maharaja Sayajirao University of Baroda, ms. 12705

Alphabetical List of Manuscripts in the Oriental Institute Baroda, by R.N. Siromani, GOS 97, 1942, Vol. 1, No. 307, Acc. No. 12705 (p. 656) [ABC 8; B 0074] [Ha 16: 2031] = NCC, p. 278b, "Baroda 12705"

Siglum: Ba^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 17 fol., adhyāya 5

Remarks: This ms. includes the Vārttika and Pariśuddhi. It was used with the designation "Baroda ms." by A. Thakur for his edition of the Pariśuddhi (New Delhi

1996: Preface, p. vii).

Berlin

Last update: 06.11.2013

Staatsbibliothek zu Berlin – Preußischer Kulturbesitz, ms. or. fol. 2760

Verzeichnis der orientalischen Handschriften in Deutschland, Band 2: Indische Handschriften, Teil 9, by Klaus Ludwig Janert and N. Narasimhan Poti, Stuttgart 1990, Ser. No. 4044, Ms. or. fol. 2760, Staatsbibliothek zu Berlin – Preußischer Kulturbesitz (p. 1253) [B 0338] [Ha 16: 6009-C9b]

Siglum: Be^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 77 fol., compl.

Bhavnagar (Gujarat)

Collection of Santosh Ram Desai, ms. 103

A Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts contained in the Private Libraries of Gujarat, Kathiawad, Kachchh, Sindh, and Khandes, compiled under the superintendence of G. Bühler. Bombay 1873, Fasc. IV, No. 103 (pp. 30f.) [ABC 108; B 0359] [MUDS]

= NCC, p. 278b, "B. IV. 30"

= CC, p. 311b, "B. 4, 30"

Details: "Vātsyāyanīyanyāyabhāşya"

Bikaner (Rajasthan)

Anup Sanskrit Library, Shri Maharaja Ganga Singhji Trust, Lallgarh Palace, ms. 6047

Catalogue of the Anup Sanskrit Library, prepared by C. Kunhan Raja and K. Madhava Krishna Sarma. Bikaner 1993², Ser. No. 133, General No. 6047 (p. 456) [B 0106] [Ha 16: 20837]

Siglum: Bi1^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 28 fol., adhyāya 1

Anup Sanskrit Library, Shri Maharaja Ganga Singhji Trust, Lallgarh Palace, ms. 6048

Catalogue of the Anup Sanskrit Library, prepared by C. Kunhan Raja and K. Madhava Krishna Sarma. Bikaner 1993², Ser. No. 134, General No. 6048 (p. 456) [B 0106] [Ha 16: 20837]

Siglum: Bi2^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 33 fol., adhyāya 1

Anup Sanskrit Library, Shri Maharaja Ganga Singhji Trust, Lallgarh Palace, ms. 6049

Catalogue of the Anup Sanskrit Library, prepared by C. Kunhan Raja and K. Madhava Krishna Sarma. Bikaner 1993², Ser. No. 135, General No. 6049 (p. 456) [B 0106] [Ha 16: 20837]

Last update: 06.11.2013

Siglum: Bi3^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 6 fol., incompl. (1.1.1 up to the middle of 1.1.22)

Bombay/Mumbai

Asiatic Society of Mumbai, ms. 1047

A Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts of the Library of the Bombay Branch of the Royal Asiatic Society, by H.D. Velankar, 1926, Vol. 1, No. 1047 (p. 307) [ABC 33; B 0115] [Ha 16: 20499; F45/5]

= NCC, p. 278b, "BBRAS. 1047"

Siglum: B^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 57 fol., compl.

Calcutta/Kolkata

Sanskrit College, Nyāya-Vaiśeşika, ms. 201

A Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Collections of the Sanskrit College, by B. Tarkavedantatirtha and J.C. Tarkatirtha, 1963, Vol. 1, Part I, No. 137, Nyāya-Vaiśeṣika Ms. No. 201 (p. 115) [B 0190] [Ha 16: 4408]

= A Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Library of the Calcutta Sanskrit College, by H. Sastri and S.C. Gui, 1900, Vol. 3, No. 413 (p. 246) [ABC 55; B 0188] [Ha 16: 2375; F45/7]

= NCC, p. 278b, "Cs. III. 413. 414 (both inc.)"

Siglum: C1^D

Details: foolscap paper, Devanagari, 129 fol., incompl. (1.1.2 to 5.2.17)

Sanskrit College, Nyāya-Vaiśeşika, ms. 202

A Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Collections of the Sanskrit College, by B. Tarkavedantatirtha and J.C. Tarkatirtha, 1963, Vol. 1, Part I, No. 138, Nyāya-Vaiśeṣika Ms. No. 202 (p. 115) [B 0190] [Ha 16: 4408]

= A Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Library of the Calcutta Sanskrit College, by H. Sastri and S.C. Gui, 1900, Vol. 3, No. 414 (p. 247) [ABC 55; B 0188] [Ha 16: 2375; FB F45/7]

= NCC, p. 278b, "Cs. III. 413. 414 (both inc.)"

Siglum: C2^D

Details: country-made paper, Devanagari, 24 fol., incompl. (1.1.1-2.1.36)

Sanskrit College, Nyāya-Vaiśeşika, ms. 332

A Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Collections of the Sanskrit College, by B. Tarkavedantatirtha and J.C. Tarkatirtha, 1965, Vol. 1, Part II, No. 381, Nyāya-Vaiśeṣika Ms. No. 332 (p. 314) [B 0190] [Ha 16: 4408-B2]

= A Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Library of the Calcutta Sanskrit College, by H. Sastri and S.C. Gui, 1900, Vol. 3, No. 555 (p. 308) [ABC 55; B 0188] [Ha 16: 2375; FB F45/7]

Siglum: C3^D

Details: country-made paper, Devanagari, fol. 2-121, incompl. (middle of 1.1.1. to

end)

Remarks: This ms. may be identical with Calcutta, ASC (unnumbered) (mentioned in

V2_E, bhūmikā, p. 1).

Sanskrit College, Nyāya-Vaiśeşika, ms. 1342

A Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Collections of the Sanskrit College, by Jagadish Chandra Tarkatirtha and Anant Dev Tarkatirtha, Calcutta, Vol. 1, Part III, 1969, No. 922, Nyāya-Vaiśeṣika Ms. No. 1342 (p. 789) [B 0190] [Ha 16: 4408-B3]

Siglum: C4^B

Details: country-made paper, Bengali, 15 fol., incompl. (1.1.1-1.1.36)

The Asiatic Society, ms. 8890 (I)

A Descriptive Catalogue of the Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Government Collection under the care of the Asiatic Society of Bengal, by Haraprasad Shastri et al., Calcutta 1957, Vol. XI (Philosophy), No. 7502, (Acc.) No. 8890 (I) (p. 77) [ABC 51; B 0170] [TUUB Ci XII 646-11, M 820]

Siglum: C5^D

Details: country-made paper, Devanagari, 120 fol., compl.

The Asiatic Society, ms. 8890 (II)

A Descriptive Catalogue of the Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Government Collection under the care of the Asiatic Society of Bengal, by Haraprasad Shastri et al., Calcutta 1957, Vol. XI (Philosophy), No. 7502, (Acc.) No. 8890 (II) (p. 77-78) [ABC 51; B 0170] [TUUB Ci XII 646-11, M 820]

Siglum: C6^D

Details: country-made paper, Devanagari, 81 fol., compl.

The Asiatic Society, ms. 11022

A Descriptive Catalogue of the Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Government Collection under the care of the Asiatic Society of Bengal, by Haraprasad Shastri et al., Calcutta 1957, Vol. XI (Philosophy), No. 7503, (Acc.) No. 11022 (p. 78) [ABC 51; B 0170] [TUUB Ci XII 646-11, M 820]

Last update: 06.11.2013

Siglum: C7^D

Details: country-made paper, Devanagari, 122 fol., compl., samvat 1850 (=

1793/1794 CE)

The Asiatic Society

Details: correct, but fragmented ms.

Source of Information: $V2_E$, bhūmikā, p. 1, "... Kalikātāstha-Eśiyāṭikasosāiṭīsamājasaṃgṛhītaṃ vātsyāyanabhāṣyapustakaṃ samānāyya dṛṣṭaṃ tat khanditam śuddham ...".

Remark: This ms. may be identical with C3^B.

The Asiatic Society, Ramakanta Deb collection, bundle 532, ms. no. 28330

Details: paper, Devanagari/Bengali, 2 fol., 33 x 12.5, fair condition Presumed source of information: unpublished NAMAMI database

The Asiatic Society, Ramakanta Deb collection, bundle 544, ms. no. 28463

Details: paper, Devanagari, 1/8 fol., 33 x 12.5, bad condition Presumed source of information: unpublished NAMAMI database

Department of Postgraduate Studies in Sanskrit, University of Calcutta, ms. 1774

Hand-Files of the Department of Postgraduate Studies in Sanskrit, University of Calcutta, (Acc.) No. 1774

Details: paper, Bengali, 7 fol., incompl. (1.1.1-1.1.8)

Department of Postgraduate Studies in Sanskrit, University of Calcutta, ms. 1776/1-6

Hand-Files of the Department of Postgraduate Studies in Sanskrit, University of Calcutta, (Acc.) No. 1776/1-6

Details: paper, Bengali, 151 fol., compl.

Collection of Jayanarayana Tarkapanchanana

Details: "imperfect" ms.

Source of Information: C1_E, preface, "An imperfect MS. belonging to the editor, Pandita Jayanarayana Tarkapanchanana"

Last update: 06.11.2013

Collection of Vanamali Vedantatirtha of Kalighat

Source of Information: C7_E, preface, p. 7; siglum "B" (= "vi" in critical apparatus).

Collection of Vanamali Vedantatirtha of Kalighat

Source of Information: C7_E, preface, p. 7; siglum "T" (= "ti" or "tipu" in critical apparatus)

Darbhanga (Bihar)

State Chandradhari Museum, ms. 39

Hand-list of the manuscripts of the State Chandradhari Museum, Darbhanga, No. 39

Siglum: D1^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 77 fol., incompl. (1.1.1 up to the middle of 4.2.35)

Kameshwar Singh Darbhanga Sanskrit University, Raj collection, ms. 127(6)

Vivaraṇātmaka Hastalekha Grantha Sūcī, Darbhanga 1986, Ser. No. 2850, Acc. No. 1372 [B 0267]

= Descriptive Catalogue of Raj Manuscripts Preserved in Kameshwar Singh Sanskrit University Darbhanga, by B.R. Sharma, Darbhanga 1969, Serial No. 2388, Raj collection No. 127(8, corrected to 6) [B 0266]

Details: paper, Devanagari, 120 fol., incompl.

Kameshwar Singh Darbhanga Sanskrit University, Raj collection, ms. 253(2)

Descriptive Catalogue of Raj Manuscripts Preserved in Kameshwar Singh Sanskrit University Darbhanga, by B.R. Sharma, Darbhanga 1969, Raj collection No. 253(2), Serial No. 2389; further No. 3885 [B 0266]

Details: paper, Devanagari, 137 fol., samvat 1756 (= 1699/1700 CE)

Kameshwar Singh Darbhanga Sanskrit University, Raj collection, ms. 432

Descriptive Catalogue of Raj Manuscripts Preserved in Kameshwar Singh Sanskrit University Darbhanga, by B.R. Sharma, Darbhanga 1969, Raj collection No. 421 (corrected to 432), Serial No. 2390 [B 0266]

Details: palm leaf, Maithili, 25 fol., adhvāva 1 (beginning missing)

Kameshwar Singh Darbhanga Sanskrit University, new collection, ms. 1376

Vivaraṇātmak Hastalekha Grantha Sūcī (Kameshwara Singh Sanskrit University), Darbhanga 1986 [B 0267], Ser. No. 2039, Acc. No. 1376

Last update: 06.11.2013

Details: paper, Maithili, 5 fol., Trisūtrībhāṣya

Jaisalmer (Rajasthan)

Jñānabhaṇḍār (Baḍā Bhaṇḍār), Jaisalmer Fort, Jaisalmer Lodrapur Parshvanath Jain Trust, Collection of Jinabhadrasūri, paper ms. 1274/3

A Catalogue of Manuscripts in Jaisalmer Jain Bhandaras, by Muni Jambuvijay. Delhi 2000, Ji. Kā. (Collection of Jinabhadrasūri, paper mss., Jaisalmer Durga) No. 1274/3 (p. 412), CD No. 220 (p. 110) [Ha 16: 20780]

= New Catalogue of Sanskrit and Prakrit Manuscripts, Jesalmer Collection, by Punyavijayaji, LD Series 36, Ahmedabad 1972, Collection of Jinabhadra, Jñānabhaṇḍāra, Jaisalmer Fort (Jesalameru-durga), Pothī 65, Ms. 1274(3) (p. 356) [B 0448] [Ha 4726]

Siglum: J1^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 70 (281-350) fol., incompl. (up to 4.2.36), ca. samvat 1279 (= 1222 CE)

Remarks: The ms. of the *Nyāyavārttikatātparyaṭīkā* in the same bundle, Pothī 65, No. 1274(1-2), was copied in *saṃvat 1279 bhādrapada vadi 13* (= September 5th, 1222 CE).

Jñānabhaṇḍār (Baḍā Bhaṇḍār), Jaisalmer Fort, Jaisalmer Lodrapur Parshvanath Jain Trust, Collection of Jinabhadrasūri, paper ms. 67

A Catalogue of Manuscripts in Jaisalmer Jain Bhandaras, by Muni Jambuvijay. Delhi 2000, Ji. Kā. (Collection of Jinabhadrasūri, paper mss., Jaisalmer Durga) No. 67 (p. 412), CD No. 232 (p. 50) [Ha 16: 20780]

= New Catalogue of Sanskrit and Prakrit Manuscripts, Jesalmer Collection, by Punyavijayaji, LD Series 36, Ahmedabad 1972, Collection of Jinabhadra, Jñānabhaṇḍāra, Jaisalmer Fort (Jesalameru-durga), Pothī 5, Ms. 67 (p. 188) [B 0448] [Ha 16: 4726]

Siglum: J2^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 57 fol., compl., ca. saṃvat 1501 (= 1444/1445 CE) Remarks: The ms. of the *Nyāyavārttikatātparyaṭīkā* in the subsequent bundle, Pothī 6, Ms. 69, was copied in *saṃvat 1501 jyeṣṭha vadi navamyāṃ ti(thau)* (= June 10th,

1444 CE).

Jammu

Shri Rambir Research Institute, Raghunath Mandir, Jammu & Kashmir Dharmarth Trust, ms. 1240

Catalogue of the Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Raghunatha Temple Library of his Highness the Maharaja of Jammu and Kashmir, by M.A. Stein, Bombay 1894, No. 1240 (p. 150). [ABC 131; B 0440] [Ha 16: 2360; FB F45/9]

= NCC. p. 279a, "Stein 150"

Siglum: Ja1^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 65 fol., incompl. (1.1.1 to the middle of 3.1.59)

Shri Rambir Research Institute, Raghunath Mandir, Jammu & Kashmir Dharmarth Trust, ms. 1617

Catalogue of the Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Raghunatha Temple Library of his Highness the Maharaja of Jammu and Kashmir, by M.A. Stein, Bombay 1894, No. 1617 (p. 150) [ABC 131; B 0440] [Ha 16: 2360; FB F45/9]

= NCC. p. 279a, "Stein 150"

Siglum: Ja2^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 42 fol., adhyāya 1

Shri Rambir Research Institute, Raghunath Mandir, Jammu & Kashmir Dharmarth Trust, ms. 1625

Catalogue of the Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Raghunatha Temple Library of his Highness the Maharaja of Jammu and Kashmir, by M.A. Stein, Bombay 1894, No. 1625 (p. 150) [ABC 131; B 0440] [Ha 16: 2360; FB F45/9]

= NCC. p. 279a, "Stein 150"

Siglum: Ja3^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 21 fol., adhyāya 1

Remarks: This ms. was previously owned by Kavīndrācārya Sarasvatī of Varanasi.

See Varanasi, KS 166. Cf. also no. L1^D.

Kanchipuram

Collection of Tiruputkuli Shrikrishna Tatacharvar

Lists of Sanskrit Manuscripts in Private Libraries of Southern India, by Gustav Oppert, Madras 1880-85, Vol II, No. 1158 (p. 67) [ABC 292; B 0418] [FB: F45/19] [Ha 16: I-34363/2]

= NCC, p. 279a, "Oppert II, 1158"

= CC, p. 311b, "Oppert II, 1158"

Details: "Vātsyāyanabhāsya"

Kashmir

Last update: 06.11.2013

A Scroll in Manuscript Containing Titles of Sanskrit Works with Author-names, Numbering 738, by Pandit Damodar Sastri, Son of Saheb Ram and Late Teacher in His Highness's Sanskrit School (Secured from the private library of H. Jacobi), Kashmir, unpublished, *nyāyaviṣaye* [no.] 3 [B 0486] [available only in MUDS]

= NCC, p. 279a, "Damodar"

Details: Gautamasūtrabhāṣyam vātsyāyanakṛtam, 4000 (śloka-s?)

Remarks: This list was prepared at the order of Nilambar Babu, Chief Justice of the Maharaja of Kashmir, by Damodar Shastri, teacher at the Royal College, before Georg Bühler's arrival in Kashmir in 1875.

Kathmandu

National Archives, Durbar Library, ms. 1/787

Preliminary List of Manuscripts, Blockprints and Historical Documents Microfilmed by the Nepal-German Manuscript Preservation Project, Part 1, 2003, Acc. No. Kathm. 1/787, Reel No. B 21/21, Inv. No. 49110 [CD]

= A Catalogue of Palm-Leaf and Selected Paper MSS. Belonging to the Durbar Library, Nepal. By Hara Prasad Sastri, 1905, Preface, p. xlvii (ms. no. 787 kha)

Siglum: K1^M

Details: palm leaf, Maithili, 58 fol., L.S. 293 (= 1411/1412 CE), adhyāya 2

National Archives, Durbar Library, ms. 1/1330

Preliminary List of Manuscripts, Blockprints and Historical Documents Microfilmed by the Nepal-German Manuscript Preservation Project, Part 1, 2003, Acc. No. Kathm. 1/1330, Reel No. A 59/3, Inv. No. 49115 [CD]

Siglum: K2^M

Details: palm leaf, Maithili, 43 fol., adhyāya 2 (up to the middle of 2.2.57), L.S. 424

(= 1542/1543 CE)

National Archives, Durbar Library [ms. 3/373]

Three leaves (fol. 1, 4, 5) of a NBh ms. in Maithili script and on palm leaf, found in two manuscripts of the Nyāyavārttika microfilmed by the NGMPP, both numbered 3/373.

Siglum: K3^M

(1) fol. 1 and 4

Preliminary List of Manuscripts, Blockprints and Historical Documents Microfilmed by the Nepal-German Manuscript Preservation Project, Part 1, 2003, Acc. No. Kathm. 3/373, Reel No. B 21/22, Inv. No. 49113 [CD]

Details: Fol. 1 covers the beginning of the commentary on 1.1.4. Fol. 4 covers part of the commentary on 1.1.5 up to its end and the beginning of the commentary on 1.1.6. Details for the NV ms.: Ms. No. 3-373, nyāya 45; palm leaf, Maithili, 33 fol. (recte for 50), incompl.; the title is given as Nyāyasūtra, Pramāṇasūtra, -bhāṣya, -vārttika. Remarks: The pictures of fol. 1 and 4 appear in reversed order after fol. 29r of the NV ms. at the beginning of the reel. After the picture of the cover leaf, the pictures of fol. 1-28 appear in regular sequence. Pictures were taken in September 1970.

= NGMPP, Reel No. A 1314/12 (not to be found in the Preliminary List)

Details for the NV ms.: Ms. No. 3-373, mīmāṃsā ? 45; palm leaf, Maithili, 32 fol. (also given as 50 [sic]), incompl.; the title is given as Pramāṇavārtika. Remarks: On this reel the sequence of the folios is as follows: cover leaf, fol. 1 (NBh), fol. 2-3 (NV), fol. 4 (NBh), fol. 1 (NV), fol. 4-28 (NV). Pictures were taken in June 1988.

= NGMPP, Reel No. A 1333/19 (not to be found in the Preliminary List)

Details for the NV ms.: Ms. No. 3-373, nyāya 45; palm leaf, 33 fol. (recte for 34), Maithili, incompl.; the title is given as Pramāṇabhāṣyapramāṇavārtika Remarks: On this reel the sequence of the folios is as follows: cover leaf, fol. 1 (NV), fol. 4 (NV), fol. 1 (NBh), fol. 2-3 (NV), fol. 4 (NBh), fol. 5-28 (NV), cover leaf. Pictures were taken in August 1988.

(2) fol. 5

NGMPP, Reel No. A 1314/11 (not to be found in the Preliminary List)

Details: Covers the remainder of the commentary on 1.1.6 and continues up to the end of the commentary on 1.1.8 and the beginning of the commentary on 1.1.9 Details for the NV ms.: Ms. No. 3-373, mīmāṃsā ? 46; palm leaf, Maithili, 22 fol. (also given as 18 [sic]), incompl.; the title is given as Pramāṇavārtika. Remarks: Most of the altogether 22 folios of this NV ms. are damaged at the end and thus do not preserve the original pagination. On this reel, the third folio bearing the number 5 can be identified as belonging to the same NBh manuscript to which folios 1 and 4 identified above belong. Pictures were taken in June 1988.

National Archives, Durbar Library, ms. 4/84

Preliminary List of Manuscripts, Blockprints and Historical Documents Microfilmed by the Nepal-German Manuscript Preservation Project, Part 1, 2003, Acc. No. Kathm. 4/84, Reel No. A 59/8, Inv. No. 49112 [CD]

Last update: 06.11.2013

Siglum: K4^N

Details: palm leaf, Newari (?), 25 fol., incompl. (some parts include the commentary

on 3.2, and some on 2.1)

National Archives, Durbar Library, ms. 1/1113

Preliminary List of Manuscripts, Blockprints and Historical Documents Microfilmed by the Nepal-German Manuscript Preservation Project, Part 1, 2003, Acc. No. Kathm. 1/1113, Reel No. A 59/12, Inv. No. 49108 [CD]

Siglum: K5^M

Details: palm leaf, Maithili, 21 fol., adhyāya 5 (incompl.)

Remarks: According to catalogue, 16 fol.

Nepalese Libraries at Kathmandu

List of Sanskrit Works Supposed by the Nepalese Pandits to be Rare in the Napalese Libraries at Khatmandoo (signed R. Lawrence, Resident, Nepal Residency, the 2nd of August, 1868), p. 5 (Tarkaśāstrāṇi, unnumbered item 8) [ABC 138; B 0488] [BUUB Ba 78] = CC, p. 311b, on Nyāyasūtra by Gautama, "Kāṭm. 4 (and 3:)"

Details: Gautamasūtrabhāsyam

Koba (Gujarat)

Shri Mahavir Jain Aradhana Kendra, Acharya Shri Kailas Sagar Suri Gyan Mandir, General Serial No. 14857/103324

Details: paper, Devanagari, 64 fol., incompl. (1.1.1 to 3.1.23)

Kumaon (Uttarakhand)

Ms. procured by Nityanand Pant Sharma (1867-1931)

Details: old, complete and correct ms.

Remarks: Procured from Kūrmācalapradeśa, his home country, by Nityanand Pant Sharma, a scholar of grammar and student of the editor, Gangadhara Shastri Tailanga. In case the manuscript remained in Varanasi after the edition was produced, it may have entered the collection of the Benares Sanskrit College where Gangadhara (1853-1913) acted as a librarian. Cf. also V3^D.

Source of information: $V2_E$, bhūmikā, p. 2 ($mad\bar{\imath}ya\dot{s}i\dot{s}yalabdhavy\bar{a}karaṇ\bar{a}c\bar{a}ryapadav\bar{\imath}kaNity\bar{a}nandapanta\dot{s}armaṇ\bar{a}$ $sv\bar{a}bhijanaK\bar{u}rm\bar{a}calaprade\dot{s}\bar{a}d$ $\bar{a}n\bar{a}vitam$ $samp\bar{u}rnam$ $pr\bar{a}c\bar{\imath}nam$ $\dot{s}uddham$ ca).

Last update: 06.11.2013

Kurukshetra (Haryana)

Jawahar Lal Nehru Library, Kurukshetra University, acc. no. 52903 (bundle 165)

Siglum: Ku^S

Details: paper, Śāradā, 141 fol., compl.

Lahore

Punjab University Library, ms. 3031

Catalogue of the Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Punjab University Library, Lahore, Vol. 2, 1941, Ser. No. 263 (p. 17) [ABC 145; B 0535]

= Card catalogue of the Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Punjab University Library, Lahore, Acc. No. 3031

= NCC, p. 29a, "PUL. II. p. 17"

Siglum: La^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 187 fol., compl.

Collection of Pandit Radhakrishna

Pustakānām Sūcīpatram (48 pages), No. 184 of Nyāyasūcī, p. 14 [ABC 299; B 0887] [BUUB Ba 78; IOL Vern. tracts Skt. 395, Pt. 8; SB OLS Bb SA 68; TUUB Ci XII 587]

= NCC, p. 279a, "Radh. 14"

= CC, p. 311b, "Rādh 14"

Details: "Vātsyāyanabhāşyam"

Remarks: The list in this printed booklet was compiled by Rajaram Shastri of Kashmir. Before the list of contents, it is stated on p. 47: *likhitaṃ paṇḍitarājārāmaśāstriṇā kāśmīravāsinā*. The booklet is not dated and bears no reference to the collection it relates to, nor to any place of publication. The list is tentatively assigned to 1880 in ABC, to approximately 1870 in the SB copy, and to approximately 1881 in the TUUB copy. The connection to the collection of Radhakrishna of Lahore is made in the CC and in a hand-written note on the title page of the copy of the SB. In the ABC, a connection is made to the collection of Maharaja Digvijay Singh of Balrampur, probably on the basis of a hand-written note on the IOL copy. Balrampur is also mentioned in the catalogue of the TUUB as the place of publication of its copy.

London

Last update: 06.11.2013

British Library, IOL ms. 3040

*Catalogue of the Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Library of the India Office, by Ernst Windisch and Julius Eggeling, London 1894, Part 4, No. 1841, Ms. No. 3040 (p. 603) [ABC 164; B 0568] [Ha 16: 3035]

= NCC, p. 279a, "IO. 1841-42"

Siglum: L1^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 121 fol., compl., samvat 1711 (= 1654/1655 CE)

Remarks: This ms. was previously owned by Kavīndrācārya Sarasvatī of Varanasi.

See Varanasi, KS 166. Cf. also Ja3^D.

British Library, IOL ms. 1821

*Catalogue of the Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Library of the India Office, by Ernst Windisch and Julius Eggeling, London 1894, Part 4, No. 1842, Ms. No. 1821 (p. 603) [ABC 164; B 0568] [Ha 16: 3035]

= NCC, p. 279a, "IO. 1841-42"

= CC, p. 311b, "IO. 1821"

Siglum: L2^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 100 fol., compl.

Madras/Chennai

Adyar Library and Research Centre, Theosophical Society, ms. 71256

- *A Catalogue of the Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Adyar Library, 1928, Vol. 2, No. 26A 19 ā 140 (p. 102 a) [ABC 190; B 0622]
- = Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Adyar Library, by K. Parameswara Aithal, 1972, Vol. 8, No. 494, Ms. No. 71256 (p. 92) [ABC 191; B 0626] [Ha 16: 8705]
- = NCC, p. 278b, "Adyar II. p. 102a (2 mss.), Adyar D. VIII. 494"

Siglum: M1^T

Details: palm leaf, Telugu, 69 fol., incompl. (adhyāya-s 1, 4.1 and 5)

Advar Library and Research Centre, Theosophical Society, ms. PM 1492

- *A Catalogue of the Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Adyar Library, 1928, Vol. 2, No. 34J 58 De 143 (p. 102 a) [ABC 190; B 0622]
- = Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Adyar Library, by K. Parameswara Aithal, 1972, Vol. 8, No. 493, Ms. No. PM 1492 (p. 92) [ABC 191; B 0626] [Ha 16: 8705]
- = NCC, p. 278b, "Adyar II. p. 102a (2 mss.), Adyar D. VIII. 493"

Siglum: M2^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 72 fol., compl.

Government Oriental Manuscripts Library, Madras University Library (Chepauk Campus), ms. R. 3725

Last update: 06.11.2013

*A Triennial Catalogue of Manuscripts Collected During the Triennium 1919/1920 to 1921/1922 for the Government Oriental Manuscripts Madras, Vol. 4.1, 1928 (1927), No. R. 3725 (p. 5513) [ABC 201; B 0632]

= NCC, p. 279a, "MT. 3725"

Siglum: M3^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 110 fol., compl.

Mirzapur/Mirzapore (Uttar Pradesh)

Collection of Rameshvar Chaube

A Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts in Private Libraries of the North-West Provinces, Part I, Allahabad, Benares 1874, Nyāya No. 29 (pp. 340f.) [ABC 232; B 0756] [Ha 16 5614; F45/17]

= NCC, p. 279a "NW. 340"

= CC, p. 311b "NW. 340"

Details: paper, Devanagari, 25 fol., work characterised as "little known"

Mithila

A handlist of Sanskrit manuscripts in Mithila to be described in the subsequent volumes of the descriptive catalogue of manuscripts in Mithila by the Bihar and Orissa Research Society, Patna. Vol. I-IV published during 1927-1940, Ms. No. 1823 [B 0684] = NCC, p. 279a, "Mithilā"

Details: "Nyāyasūtrabhāṣyam, Vātsāyana" (sic)

Mysore

Oriental Research Institute, University of Mysore, ms. C1375

Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts (Vyākaraṇa, Śilpa, Ratnaśāstra, Kāmaśāstra, Arthaśāstra, Sānkhya, Yoga, Pūrvamīmāṃsā, Nyāya), by H.P. Malledevaru, Mysore 1984, Vol. X, No. 36858, Ms. No. C. 1375 (p. 560f.) [B 0718] [Ha 16: 9401-B10]

= Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Government Oriental Library Mysore, 1922, Vol. 1, No. C1375 (p. 394) [ABC, UC 26; B 0707] [BORI: No. 4033]

= NCC, p. 279a "Mysore I. 394 (2 mss.)"

Siglum: My1^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 76 fol., compl.

Oriental Research Institute, University of Mysore, ms. C1580/1-6

Descriptive Catalogue of the Sanskrit Manuscripts (Vyākaraṇa, Śilpa, Ratnaśāstra, Kāmaśāstra, Arthaśāstra, Sāṅkhya, Yoga, Pūrvamīmāṃsā, Nyāya), by H.P. Malledevaru, Mysore 1984, Vol. X, No. 36859-64, Ms. No. C. 1580/1-6 (p. 560f.) [B 0718] [Ha 16: 9401-B10]

= Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Government Oriental Library Mysore, 1922, Vol. 1, No. C1580/1-6 (p. 394) [ABC, UC 26; B 0707]

= NCC, p. 279a "Mysore I. 394 (2 mss.)"

Siglum: My2^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 111 fol.; No. 36859, Ms. No. C1580/1, 6 fol. (*trisūtrībhāṣya*); No. 36860, Ms. No. C1580/2, 16 fol. (from 1.1.4 to end of *adhyāya* 1); No. 36861, Ms. No. C1580/3, 29 fol. (*adhyāya* 2); No. 36862, Ms. No. C1580/4, 28 fol. (*adhyāya* 3); No. 36863, Ms. No. C1580/5, 19 fol. (*adhyāya* 4); No. 36864, Ms. No. C1580/6, 12 fol. (*adhyāya* 5)

Oriental Research Institute, University of Mysore, ms. C4042

Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts (Vyākaraṇa, Śilpa, Ratnaśāstra, Kāmaśāstra, Arthaśāstra, Sāṅkhya, Yoga, Pūrvamīmāṃsā, Nyāya), by H.P. Malledevaru, Mysore 1984, Vol. X, No. 36857, Ms. No. C. 4042/1 = No. 36865, Ms. No. C. 4042/2 (p. 560f.) [B 0718] [Ha 16: 9401-B10]

Siglum: My3^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 115 fol., compl.

Remarks: This ms. has been catalogued twice under two different numbers; under the earlier number, the title is given as "Nyāyasūtram" by "Gautamaḥ" because the sūtra text was recognized to be embedded in the text of the NBh.

Nadia District, West Bengal

Collection of a "pandit of Nuddea"

Details: "A fair MS. in the Bengali character"

Source of Information: NBh C1_E, Preface.

Patan (Gujarat)

Last update: 06.11.2013

Large Samghavi Bhandar, ms. 21

Report on the Search for Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Bombay Presidency during the Year 1880-81, by F. Kielhorn, Bombay 1881, Intro p. vi. (= Kleine Schriften, 1969, Vol. 1, pp. 65-76) [ABC 273.Kh; B 0850]

- = NCC, p. 279a, "Kh. Intro. p. vi."
- = CC, p. 311b, "Kh. VI."

Details: "Large Samghavi Bhandār", No. 21, 98 fol.

Remarks: This ms. is not found in the Catalogue of the Manuscripts of the Patan Jaina Bhandara, ed. by Muni Punyavijayaji and Muni Jambuvijayaji, Ahmedabad 1991. [B 0811]

Poona/Pune

Bhandarkar Oriental Research Institute, ms. 90 of 1866-1868

Bhandarkar Oriental Research Institute, A copy of the complete card index of the BORI manuscripts, prepared for NCC work in 1940, No. 90 of 1866-1868 [B 0840] [available only in MUDS]

- = Lists of Manuscripts Collected for the Government Manuscripts Library by the Professors of Sanskrit at the Deccan and Elphinstone Colleges Since 1895 and 1899, Poona 1925, Dr. G. Buehler's Collection, 1866-68, No. 90 (p. 90) [ABC 265; B 0839] [Ha 16: 3118]
- = Two Lists of Sanskrit MSS. together with some Remarks on my Connexion with the Search for Sanskrit MSS., by G. Bühler, *ZDMG* 42, 1888, II. A rough List of MSS. bought and copied for the Government of Bombay during the years 1866-1868. Class III. Philosophy, C. Nyāya and Vaiśeṣika (p. 555, no. 92) [ABC 44; B 0151] [PL]
- = NCC, p. 278b, "BORI. 90 of 1866-68"
- = NCC, p. 278b, "Bühler 555"
- = CC, p. 311b, "Bühler 558"

Siglum: P1^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 118 fol., compl., February 18, 1867 CE & Śaka 1788

Bhandarkar Oriental Research Institute, ms. 111 of A 1879-1880

Bhandarkar Oriental Research Institute, A copy of the complete card index of the BORI manuscripts, prepared for NCC work in 1940, No. 111 of A 1879-1880 [B 0840]

= A Catalogue of the Collections of Manuscripts Deposited in the Deccan College with an Index, compiled by Shridhar R. Bhandarkar, Bombay 1888, No. 111 [B 0862]

- = Short Report of Select 122 Manuscripts purchased from Poona during the year 1879-80, by R.G. Bhandarkar. Dated Bombay, 7th July1880, No. 111 (p. 34) [ABC 272; B 0851] [PL]
- = NCC, p. 278b, "BORI. 111 of A1879-80"
- = NCC, p. 278b, "Bh. 34"
- = CC, p. 311b, "Bh. 34"

Siglum: P2^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 98 fol., incompl. (pramāṇaprakaraṇa [1.1.4-1.1.8]

missing), samvat 1815 (= 1758/1759 CE)

Bhandarkar Oriental Research Institute, ms. 446 of 1886-1892

Bhandarkar Oriental Research Institute, A copy of the complete card index of the BORI manuscripts, prepared for NCC work in 1940, No. 446 of 1886-1892 [B 0840]

= A Fourth Report of Operations in Search of Sanskrit MSS. in the Bombay Circle, April 1886–March 1892, by Peter Peterson, Extra Number of the *Journal of the Bombay Branch of the Royal Asiatic Society* (vol. 18, no. 49A), Bombay 1894, No. 446 (p. 16 of "List of Manuscripts Acquired for Government") [ABC 274/4; B 0857] [PL]

- = NCC, p. 278b, "BORI. 446 of 1886-1892"
- = NCC, p. 278b, "Peters. IV. p. 16 (no. 446)"

Siglum: P3^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 16 fol., adhyāya 1

Bhandarkar Oriental Research Institute, ms. 267 (Vishrambhag Collection)

Bhandarkar Oriental Research Institute, A copy of the complete card index of the BORI manuscripts, prepared for NCC work in 1940, No. 267, Vishrambhag Collection [B 0840]

- = A Catalogue of the Collections of Manuscripts Deposited in the Deccan College with an Index, compiled by Shridhar R. Bhandarkar, Bombay 1888, No. 267, Vishrambhag Collection [B 0862]
- = A Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Library of the Deccan College. Part I, Prepared under the Superintendence of F. Kielhorn, Part II and Index Prepared under the Superintendence of R.G. Bhandarkar, 1884, No. 267 [ABC 275; B 0861]
- = NCC, p. 278b, "BORI. 267 of Viś. (i)"
- = CC, p. 311b, "Poona 267"

Siglum: P4^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 115 fol., compl.

Bhandarkar Oriental Research Institute, ms. 268 (Vishrambhag Collection)

Bhandarkar Oriental Research Institute, A copy of the complete card index of the BORI manuscripts, prepared for NCC work in 1940, No. 268, Viśrambhāg Collection [B 0840] = A Catalogue of the Collections of Manuscripts Deposited in the Deccan College with an Index,

compiled by Shridhar R. Bhandarkar, Bombay 1888, No. 268, Vishrambhag Collection [B 0862]

= A Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Library of the Deccan College. Part I, Prepared under the Superintendence of F. Kielhorn, Part II and Index Prepared under the Superintendence of R.G. Bhandarkar, 1884, No. 268 [ABC 275; B 0861]

Last update: 06.11.2013

- = NCC, p. 278b, "BORI. 268 of Viś. (i)"
- = CC, p. 311b, "Poona 268"

Siglum: P5^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 35 fol., adhyāya-s 2, 4 and 5, samvat 1683 (= 1626/1627

CE)

Bharat Itihas Sanshodhak Mandal, ms. 22/758

Bhārata-Itihāsa-Saṃśodhaka-Maṇḍala-stha-hastalikhitagranthānukramaṇikā, ed. by H.G. Khare, Pune, 1960, No. 22/758 (p. 148) [ABC 266; B 0841] [BORI: No. XV(C), 16978]

= NCC, p. 278b, "BISM. vi. 758/22 (adhy. I)"

= A copy of the BISM card-index prepared for the NCC

Siglum: P6^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, adhyāya 1

Anandashram, ms. S11-10-98

A Hand List of 8518 Manuscripts in the Anandashrama, Pune, Ms. No. 1237 [B 0837] = New hand list generated from a digital database, seen in 2008, no page numbers, Section 11: Nyāya, Sm 1908, S11-11-108, revised by hand as S11-10-98

Siglum: P7^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 161 fol., compl.

Anandashram, ms. S11-10-99

A Hand List of 8518 Manuscripts in the Anandashrama, Pune [B 0837]

= New hand list generated from a digital database, seen in 2008, no page numbers, Section 11, Nyāya, S11-11-107, revised by hand as S11-10-99

Details: paper, Devanagari, 141 fol., compl.

Unspecified library

Details: ms. with many inappropriate and incoherent readings

Source of Information: NBh $V2_E$ (cf. "Bhūmikā", p. 1: ... puṇyagrāmasthapustakālayastham ekaṃ pustakam ānāyitaṃ, paraṃ tu tan na pariśodhitam iti

lekhakānavadhānajanitānupayuktāsaṃgatārthapāṭhabhedabāhulyapradarśanaṃ vidvadāyāsamātraphalakaṃ manyamānena mayā na sarvatropayojitam)

Puri

Last update: 06.11.2013

Shankaracharya Math (ms. 1)

Details: palm-leaf, Maithili, incompl. (up to 3.2.43)

Remarks: According to Praphulla Kumar Mishra, Utkal University (Bhuvaneshvar),

nobody at the Math ever saw a NBh ms. there. Source of Information: NBh V4_E (Preface, p. 1)

Shankaracharya Math (ms. 2)

Details: palm-leaf, Maithili, incompl. (from 1.2.4 to end)

Remarks: According to Praphulla Kumar Mishra, Utkal University (Bhuvaneshvar),

nobody at the Math ever saw a NBh ms. there. Source of Information: NBh V4_E (Preface, p. 1)

Srinagar

Research and Publication Department, Jammu and Kashmir Government, ms. 1498

A Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts, by the Research and Publication Department, Jammu and Kashmir Government, Srinagar (Kmr), 1989, Ser. No. 2664, Acc. No. 1498 (p. 94) [Tib S-2/41-9541]

Siglum: S1^S

Details: paper, Śāradā, 99 fol., compl., samvat 1929 (= 1872/1873 CE)

Research and Publication Department, Jammu and Kashmir Government, ms. 1962

A Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts, by the Research and Publication Department, Jammu and Kashmir Government, Srinagar (Kmr), 1989, Ser. No. 2665, Acc. No. 1962 (p. 94) [Tib S-2/41-9541]

Siglum: S2^S

Details: paper, Śāradā, 65 fol., compl., [laukika(?)]samvat 4975 (= 1899 CE)

Tanjore/Thanjavur

Tanjore Maharaja Serfoji's Saraswati Mahal Library, ms. 5991

A Descriptive Catalogue of the Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Sarasvati Mahal Library Tanjore, by P.P.S. Sastri, 1931, Vol. 11, No. 5991 (p. 4471-4472) [ABC 302; B 0961] [Ha 16: 3261/11]

= A Classified Index to the Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Palace at Tanjore, by A.C. Burnell, London 1880, No. 2321 (p. 113a) [ABC 306; B 0959] [Ha 16: 2372-C]

Last update: 06.11.2013

- = NCC, p. 278b, "Burnell 113a"
- = NCC, p. 279a, "TD. 5991"
- = CC, p. 311b, "Burnell 113a"

Siglum: TaD

Details: paper, Devanagari, 81 fol. compl., samvat 1851 (= 1794/1795 CE)

Trivandrum/Thiruvananthapuram

Oriental Research Institute & Manuscripts Library, University of Kerala, Kariyavattom, Thiruvananthapuram, ms. 14980A

- *Alphabetical Index of the Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Oriental Research Institute & Manuscripts Library, by K. Vijayan, P. Visalakshy and R. Girija, Trivandrum 1995, Vol. VI, No. 27865, Ms. No. 14980A [B 1008]
- = A hand-list of 1068 manuscripts in the private collection of the Paliyam family, Cochin State, copied from a hand-list supplied by P. Anujan Achan, State Archaeologist, Trichur, Cochin State, No. 257 (a) [B 0237]
- = NCC, p. 279a, "Paliyam 257(a)"

Siglum: T^{ML}

Details: palm leaf, Malayalam, 99 fol., compl.

Ujjain

Scindia Oriental Research Institute, Vikram University, Ujjain, mss. 995 and 1450

Hastalikhitagrantha registar, Scindia Oriental Institute, Ujjain, Nos. 995 and 1450

- = [No. 995] Catalogue of Oriental Manuscripts Collected and Preserved in the Oriental Manuscripts Library (Scindia Oriental Institute), Ujjain, Vol. 1, 1936, No. 1593 (p. 60) [ABC 321A; B 1030] [BORI: No. XV (C), 34111]
- = [No. 1450] Catalogue of Oriental Manuscripts in the Oriental Manuscripts Library (Scindia Oriental Institute), Ujjain, Vol. 1, 1936, No. 1594 (p. 60) [ABC 321 A; B 1030]
- = NCC, p. 279a, "Ujjain I. pp. 60 (two mss.)"

Siglum: U1^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 83 and 106 fol., adhyāya 1-2 and 3-5, samvat 1734 (=

1677/1678 CE)

Scindia Oriental Research Institute, Vikram University, Ujjain, ms. 1336

Hastalikhitagrantha registar, Scindia Oriental Institute, Ujjain, No. 1336

= Catalogue of Oriental Manuscripts Collected and Preserved in the Oriental Manuscripts Library (Scindia Oriental Institute), Ujjain, Vol. 1, 1936, No. 1336 (p. 61) [ABC 321A; B 1030] [BORI: No. XV (C), 34111]

= NCC, p. 279a, "Ujjain I. pp. 61"

Siglum: U2^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 5 fol., Trisūtrībhāṣyam

Varanasi

Saraswati Bhawan Library, Sampurnanand Sanskrit Vishwavidyalaya, ms. 30664

A Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts Acquired for and Deposited in the Sanskrit University Library (Sarasvati Bhavana) Varanasi During the Year 1791-1950, Vol. 8, 1962, No. 30664 [ABC 17; B 1049] [Ha 16: 3425-C8; FB F45/3]

Siglum: V1^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 19 fol., adhyāya 5

Saraswati Bhawan Library, Sampurnanand Sanskrit Vishwavidyalaya, ms. 32673

A Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts Acquired for and Deposited in the Sanskrit University Library (Sarasvati Bhavana) Varanasi During the Year 1791-1950, Vol. 8, 1962, No. 32673 [ABC 17; B 1049] [Ha 16: 3425-C8; FB F45/3]

Siglum: V2^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 85 fol. (1-28, 30-85, 88), adhyāya-s 1-4, saṃvat 1777 (=

1720/1721 CE)

Saraswati Bhawan Library, Sampurnanand Sanskrit Vishwavidyalaya, ms. 33185

A Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts Acquired for and Deposited in the Sanskrit University Library (Sarasvati Bhavana) Varanasi During the Year 1791-1950, Vol. 8, 1962, No. 33185 [ABC 17; B 1049] [Ha 16: 3425-C8; FB F45/3]

Details: paper, Devanagari, fol. 1-112 (fol. 57 missing)

Remarks: The ms. has a very new appearance. Copies were not acquired.

Saraswati Bhawan Library, Sampurnanand Sanskrit Vishwavidyalaya, ms. 33186

A Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts Acquired for and Deposited in the Sanskrit University Library (Sarasvati Bhavana) Varanasi During the Year 1791-1950, Vol. 8, 1962, No. 33186 [ABC 17; B 1049] [Ha 16: 3425-C8; FB F45/3]

Siglum: V3^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 110 fol., compl.

Remarks: This may be a ms. used by Gangadhara Shastri Tailanga (V2_E). Cf.

Kumaon.

Saraswati Bhawan Library, Sampurnanand Sanskrit Vishwavidyalaya, ms. 33244

A Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts Acquired for and Deposited in the Sanskrit University Library (Sarasvati Bhavana) Varanasi During the Year 1791-1950, Vol. 8, 1962, No. 33244 [ABC 17; B 1049] [Ha 16: 3425-C8; FB F45/3]

Siglum: V4^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, samvat 1592 (= 1536), 20 fol., adhyāya 5

Remarks: This ms. has been used by Gangadhara Shastri Tailanga (cf. V2_E,

"bhūmikā").

Saraswati Bhawan Library, Sampurnanand Sanskrit Vishwavidyalaya, ms. 33245

A Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts Acquired for and Deposited in the Sanskrit University Library (Sarasvati Bhavana) Varanasi During the Year 1791-1950, Vol. 8, 1962, No. 33245 [ABC 17; B 1049] [Ha 16: 3425-C8; FB F45/3]

Siglum: V5^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 9 fol. (6-14), incompl. (middle of 1.1.2 to 1.1.27)

Saraswati Bhawan Library, Sampurnanand Sanskrit Vishwavidyalaya, ms. 94461

A Descriptive Catalogue of the Sanskrit Manuscripts Acquired for and Deposited in the Sampurnanand Sanskrit University (Sarasvati-Bhavana) Library, Varanasi during the years 1951-1981, Vol. 8,2: Nyāya-Vaiśeṣika Manuscripts, 1995, No. 94461 [Ha 16: 2005-511]

Siglum: V6^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 20 fol., incompl. (up to 1.2.1)

Saraswati Bhawan Library, Sampurnanand Sanskrit Vishwavidyalaya, ms. 94546

A Descriptive Catalogue of the Sanskrit Manuscripts Acquired for and Deposited in the Sampurnanand Sanskrit University (Sarasvati-Bhavana) Library, Varanasi during the years 1951-1981, Vol. 8,2: Nyāya-Vaiśeṣika Manuscripts, 1995, No. 94546 [Ha 16: 2005-511]

Siglum: V7^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 153 fol., incompl. (up to the middle of 4.2.35)

Saraswati Bhawan Library, Sampurnanand Sanskrit Vishwavidyalaya, ms. 94615

A Descriptive Catalogue of the Sanskrit Manuscripts Acquired for and Deposited in the Sampurnanand Sanskrit University (Sarasvati-Bhavana) Library, Varanasi during the years 1951-1981, Vol. 8,2: Nyāya-Vaiśeṣika Manuscripts, 1995, No. 94615 [Ha 16: 2005-511]

Siglum: V8^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 6 fol., Trisūtrībhāṣyam

Saraswati Bhawan Library, Sampurnanand Sanskrit Vishwavidyalaya, ms. 96569

A Descriptive Catalogue of the Sanskrit Manuscripts Acquired for and Deposited in the Sampurnanand Sanskrit University (Sarasvati-Bhavana) Library, Varanasi during the years 1951-1981, Vol. 8,2: Nyāya-Vaiśeṣika Manuscripts, 1995, No. 96569 [Ha 16: 2005-511]

Last update: 06.11.2013

Siglum: V10^B

Details: paper, Bengali, 4 fol., Trisūtrībhāṣya.

Saraswati Bhawan Library, Sampurnanand Sanskrit Vishwavidyalaya, ms. 97821

A Descriptive Catalogue of the Sanskrit Manuscripts Acquired for and Deposited in the Sampurnanand Sanskrit University (Sarasvati-Bhavana) Library, Varanasi during the years 1951-1981, Vol. 8,2: Nyāya-Vaiśeṣika Manuscripts, 1995, No. 97821 [Ha 16: 2005-511]

Siglum: V11^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 6 fol., Trisūtrībhāṣya

Saraswati Bhawan Library, Sampurnanand Sanskrit Vishwavidyalaya, ms. number unknown

Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts in the Sanskrit College Library Benares, Allahabad 1878, No. 397 (p. 190) [ABC 14; B 0084]

- = NCC, p. 279a, "SB. 190"
- = A Catalogue of Manuscripts in the Library of the Benares Sanskrit College, Published as a Supplement to *The Pandit*, Nyāyavaiśeṣika mss., Vol. VII-IX, Benares 1872-1874, Bundle 66, No. 2 (Vol. VIII, p. 185) [ABC 13; B 0081] [TUUB Ci XII 29]
- = NCC, p. 278b, "Ben. 185 (inc.)"
- = CC, p. 311b, "Ben. 185"

Details: Devanagari, 4 fol.

Government Sanskrit College Benares (predecessor of Sampurnanand Sanskrit Vishwavidyalaya)

A Contribution towards an Index to the Bibliography of the Indian Philosophical Systems, by Fitzedward Hall, Calcutta 1859, The Nyāya Philosophy, No. II (p. 20) [ABC 112; B 0370] [FB Ph I 1:39]

- = NCC, p. 279a, "Hall p. 20"
- = CC, p. 311b, "Hall p. 20"

Details: "attributed to Vātsyāyana the rṣi"; 96 fol., 3400 śloka-s; Ben. Coll. (= Government College at Benares)

Remarks: This ms. may have been the ms. used by the editor of the *editio princeps* (C1_E) which was published in 1864-1865 (see next entry).

Last update: 06.11.2013

Government Sanskrit College Benares (predecessor of Sampurnanand Sanskrit Vishwavidyalaya)

Details: "correct ms."

Source of Information: NBh C1_E (cf. Foreword)

Government Sanskrit College Benares (predecessor of Sampurnanand Sanskrit Vishwavidyalaya)

Details: complete, undated, not very old nor very correct ms.

Source of Information: NBh V2_E (cf. "bhūmikā")

Udasin Sanskrit Vidyalaya, Meer Ghat (near Dasaswamedh Ghat), bundle no. 1, ms. no. not available

Details: paper, Devanagari, 31 fol., 22 x 10, good condition

Presumed source of information: unpublished NAMAMI database

Collection of Meru Shastri, previously the head of the Peshva chief council, Pune, living in Benares

Details: complete, correct, undated and worn ms., written by the owner Remarks: A transcript of this ms. was utilized in NBh V2_E (cf. "bhūmikā")

Collection of Prem Nath

A Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts in Private Libraries of the North-Western Provinces, Part II, Allahabad 1877, Logical Philosophy, No. 34 (p. 38-39) [ABC 232; B 0756] [FB: F45/17]

= CC, p. 311b, NP. I, 38

= NCC, p. 279a, NP. I. 38

Details: paper, Devanagari, 8 fol.

Remarks: Part II old series = Part I new series (1877). The catalogue states that the ms. is old and apparently correct.

Collection of Durga Bai

A Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts in the North-Western Provinces, Part VI, Allahabad 1881, Nyāya Śāstram, No. 2 (p. 38-39) [ABC 232; B 0756] [FB: F45/17]

= CC, p. 311b, NP. VI, 38

= NCC, p. 279a, NP. VI. 38

Details: paper, Devanagari, 43 fol., very old and very correct, complete

Collection of Brahma Gopal Bhaduri, Bundle no. 1, ms. no. unknown

A Descriptive Catalogue of the Sanskrit Manuscripts Acquired for and Deposited in the Sampurnanand Sanskrit University (Sarasvati-Bhavana) Library, Varanasi during the years 1951-1981, Vol. 8,2: Nyāya-Vaiśeṣika Manuscripts, 1995, No. 95508 [Ha 16: 2005-511]

Last update: 06.11.2013

Details: paper, Bengali, 155 fol., compl.

Remarks: Brahma Gopal Bhaduri's father, Sudhir Ranjan Bhaduri, donated his mss. to Sarasvati Bhavan Library at certain conditions, which were not fulfilled. After litigation the mss. were returned to Brahma Gopal and his two sons, Jayant Kumar and Hemant Kumar. They are nowadays in their care. The collection has been visited by several project participants and associates between 2001 and 2011.

Source of information: personal communication by Suryakant Yadav, Head librarian, Sampurnanand Sanskrit University; presumably, the unpublished NAMAMI database

Collection of Kavīndrācārya Sarasvatī

Kavindracharya List, ed. R. Ananta Krishna Sastry, Baroda 1921, no. 166 (p. 4).

Details: "Gautamasūtra Bhāṣyasahita".

Remarks: Ja3^D and L1^D bear the typical ownership phrase with which the mss. of Kavindracharya's collection were marked.

Visakhapatnam

Collection of Paravastu Venkatarangacharyar

Lists of Sanskrit Manuscripts in Private Libraries of Southern India, by Gustav Oppert, Madras 1880-85, Vol. I, No. 8234 (p. 579) [ABC 292; B 0418] [FB: F45/19] [Ha 16: I-34363/1]

= NCC, p. 279a, "Oppert I. 8234"

= CC, p. 311b, "Oppert 8234"

Details: "Vātsyāyanabhāṣya"

Vrindaban

Collection of Sarvabhauma Madhusudan Gosvami, Radha Raman Ghera, ms. 22 (??)

A Catalogue of Manuscripts Microfilmed by the Vrindaban Research Institute, VRI Manuscript Preservation Project (April, 1980 – March, 1981), compiled by V.B. Gosvami, Vrindaban: Vrindaban Research Institute, 1982, No. 416, Reel No. 31 (p. 84-85) [B 1065]

Siglum: Vr^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 119 fol. (according to catalogue 117), compl., V.S. 1896 (= 1839/1840 CE)

Last update: 06.11.2013

Wai

Prājña Pāthaśālā Mandala, ms. 5684

Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts (Prājña Pāṭhaśālā Maṇḍala Collection), by Laxmanshastri Joshi, Wai 1970, Part II, No. 5684 (p. 720f.) [B 1068] [Ha 10872-B2]

= A hand-list with extracts and notes of the Sanskrit manuscripts in the Prājña Pāṭhaśālā Maṇḍala (Dharmakośa Kāryālaya) Wai, Satara District, Bombay Presidency, prepared by Lakshman Shastri Joshi, p. 261 [ABC and B n/a]

= NCC, p. 279a, "Wai 261. D. II. 5684-85"

Siglum: W1^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 94 fol., compl.

Prājña Pāṭhaśālā Maṇḍala, ms. 5685

Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts (Prājña Pāṭhaśālā Maṇḍala Collection), by Laxmanshastri Joshi, Wai 1970, Part II, No. 5685 (p. 720f.) [B 1068] [Ha 10872-B2]

= A hand-list with extracts and notes of the Sanskrit manuscripts in the Prājña Pāṭhaśālā Maṇḍala (Dharmakośa Kāryālaya) Wai, Satara District, Bombay Presidency, prepared by Lakshman Shastri Joshi, p. 261 [ABC and B n/a]

= NCC, p. 279a, "Wai 261. D. II. 5684-85"

Siglum: W2^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 133 fol., compl., samvat 1734 (= 1677/1678 CE)

Prājña Pāţhaśālā Mandala, ms. 5686

Descriptive Catalogue of Sanskrit Manuscripts (Prājña Pāṭhaśālā Maṇḍala Collection), by Laxmanshastri Joshi, Wai 1970, Part II, No. 5686 (p. 720f.) [B 1068] [Ha 10872-B2]

= A hand-list with extracts and notes of the Sanskrit manuscripts in the Prājña Pāṭhaśālā Maṇḍala (Dharmakośa Kāryālaya) Wai, Satara District, Bombay Presidency, prepared by Lakshman Shastri Joshi, p. 261 [ABC and B n/a]

= NCC, p. 279a, "Wai 261. D. II. 5686 (inc.)"

Siglum: W3^D

Details: paper, Devanagari, 22 fol., adhyāya 1

Walgaon (Amravati District, Maharashtra)

Collection of Gaurishankar

Catalogue of Sanskrit and Prākrit Manuscripts in the Central Provinces and Berar, by Rai Bahadur Hiralal, Nagpur 1926, App. 2, B. No. 5, No. 5049 [ABC 67; B 0216] [FB: F45/8] = NCC, 278b, "CPB. 5049"

Details: "Vātsyāyanabhāṣya (Nyāyasūtrabhāṣya)"

Unlocated libraries

Purnashrama Svami

Details: complete, very correct in every respect, and undated, prepared and presumably owned by Purnashrama Svami, a fellow-student of the editor's *guru*, Rajaram Shastri

Source of Information: NBh $V2_E$ (cf. "bhūmikā")